In partnership with

2300 SW 17th Road, Ocala, FL 34471
352-369-2315 FAX 352-369-2475

www.elc-marion.org
Our Vision Statement

Children and Families in our community will have access to quality early learning programs
that nurture their learning potential and prepare them for their educational success.
Board Meeting

To participate
in this meeting
via conference
call, dial-in
number is
(888) 670-3525
& conference
code is
7148104574#

AGENDA - AMENDED
October 25, 2018 - 8:30 a.m.
8:30 a.m.
8:31 a.m.
8:33 a.m.
8:45 a.m.

Call to Order
Roll Call
Chair Report Presentation by Altrusa International of Ocala
Consent Agenda

R. Colen
B. Montalvo
R. Colen
Section 1

ACTION ITEM
Administration
8:49 a.m.
Board Member Appointment
8:53 a.m.
2018 – 2019 Budget 1-B
8:57 a.m.
Fiscal Policies
9:01 a.m.
Audit RFP

Section 2 – R. Fricks
Section 3 – D. Johnson/R. Fricks
Section 4 – D. Day/D. Johnson
Section 5 – D. Day/D. Johnson

DISCUSSION ITEMS
9:05 a.m.
ELCMC Committee Updates
9:09 a.m.
Community Partner Updates

R. Fricks/E. Deola
Roundtable

INFORMATION ITEMS
• Parent Comments for August & September 2018
• Community Events
• This is why we do what we do…
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
Public Comment
Adjournment
MEETING SCHEDULE for FY 2018 – 2019
Success By 6 (SB6)
Leadership Council
9:00 AM, Friday

Executive
Committee
8:30 AM, Thursday
10/11/18

Board of Directors
8:30 AM, Thursday

Finance Committee
8:30 AM, Thursday

10/25/18

10/10/18 @ 10AM
11/29/18

11/16/18
1/18/19
3/15/19
5/17/19
•

12/13/18
1/10/19
2/14/19
3/14/19
4/11/19
5/9/19
6/13/19

1/31/19
2/28/19
3/28/19
4/25/19
5/23/19
6/27/19

All Committee Board meetings will be held at ELCMC 2300 SW 17th Road, Ocala, FL 34471

2018 – 2019 Board Members
Robert Colen
Mark Lander
Doug Day
Judy Johnson

Roberta Brant
Kathleen Woodring
Melissa Hancock
Jeanne Henningsen

Benda Ford
Tara Huls
Ryan Lilly
Earlene Carte

Kathy Robbins
Kelly Rogers
Lisa Seiffer
Gwen Wilson

Richard Forrester
Commissioner M. Stone
Cara Meeks
Paola Lopez

Section
1

2

Consent Agenda
• August 23, 2018 Full Board Meeting Minutes
• Financials through August 2018
• Current Events through September 2018
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Early Learning Coalition of Marion County:
Full Board Meeting Minutes
Date/Time:

August 23, 2018 at 8:30 AM

Location:

Early Learning Coalition of Marion County

Members Present:

Robert Colen; Doug Day; Richard Forrester; Cara Meeks; Kelly Rogers; Lisa Seiffer; Roberta Brant; Paola
Lopez; Jeanne Henningsen; Commissioner Michelle Stone; Earlene Carte; Ryan Lilly; Judy Johnson;
Gwen Wilson; Mark Lander; Brenda Ford

Members Absent:

Holly Gerlach; Kathleen Woodring; Melissa Hancock; Kathy Robbins

Guests:

Jennifer Fryns, College of Central Florida; Alexandra Goldberg, Help Me Grow (Conference Phone)

Staff Present:

Roseann Fricks, Chief Executive Officer; Anita Winter, Chief Operations Officer; DeAnna Johnson, Chief
Finance Officer; Elizabeth Deola, Chief Programs Officer; Marcelle West, Project Manager/IT; LaTrisha
Sims, Compliance Director; Cody Hosford, Community Relations Coordinator; Tonya Cox, Help Me Grow
Care Coordinator

Agenda Item
Call to Order
Chair Report

Consideration of the Consent
Agenda

Summary/Discussion
Board meeting called to order. Marcelle West called roll. A quorum
was present.
Alexandra Goldberg congratulated the ELC on being a Help Me
Grow affiliate and shared details of Help Me Grow with the Board.
Staff participated in a presentation for the Annual Board Meeting.
Robert thanked Doug Day for attending the County Commission
Budget Workshop and being a part the visit with United Way to
ELCMC.
The minutes from the June 28, 2018 meeting, Current Events for
FY 2017 - 2018, and Current Events through July 2018 were
included with the consent agenda.

Board of Directors Appointment

Roseann asked to approve the appointment of Mark Lander, as the
representative of the Marion County Health Department, as detailed
on the Action Sheet.

Board of Directors Resignation

Roseann asked to approve the resignation for Monique Todd,
Representative of Programs Under Disabilities Education Act –
Term 7/1/18 to 6/30/22. Ms. Todd has requested her term ends as
of August 6, 2018, as detailed on the Action Sheet.
Anita asked to approve the COOP Plan – Delegation of Authority, in
the event that ELCMC’s COOP is activated, as detailed on the
Action Sheet.
LaTrisha asked to approve the revisions to the Personnel Policies –
Background Screening During Employment to remain in compliance
with the 2018 – 2019 OEL Grant Agreement, as detailed on the
Action Sheet.

COOP – Delegation of Authority
Background Screening During
Employment Policy

ELCMC Committee Updates

Department of Children &
Families Update

Roseann reported that the Finance Committee are currently
working on finalizing the Fiscal Policies to present to the Board for
final approval.
Elizabeth explained that the Help Me Grow Leadership Council will
replace the Program/VPK Committee.
Richard Forrester provided the number of investigations and special
conditions cases closed in Marion County. If additional information
is needed, please visit www.myflfamilies.com.

Action
Robert Colen called the meeting to
order at 8:30 AM

ACTION: Jeanne Henningsen moved
to accept the Consent Agenda as
presented. Brenda Ford seconded.
The motion carried unanimously.
ACTION: Commissioner Stone
moved to approve, and Doug Day
seconded. The motion carried
unanimously.
ACTION: Ryan Lilly moved to
approve, and Cara Meeks seconded.
The motion carried unanimously.
ACTION: Roberta Brant moved to
approve, and Paola Lopez seconded.
The motion carried unanimously.
ACTION: Judy Johnson moved to
approve contingent upon the
emergency closure language, and
Doug Day seconded. The motion
carried unanimously.
DISCUSSION

DISCUSSION
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Agenda Item
Child Care Partner Report

CareerSource Update
CEP Update

Marion County Public Schools
Update
Marion County Commission
Update

College of Central Florida Update

Wellcare Health Plans Update
Marion County Health
Department Update

Parent Comments for June and
July 2018
Community Events
This is why we do what we do…
Chief Executive Officer Update

Summary/Discussion
Earlene Carte provided the following highlights:
• Currently having challenges finding qualified teachers.
• Coalition hosted a Job Fair for the providers.
• Noticing more of a partnership between providers and less
competition.
• Will meet with Senator Baxley on September 18th to discuss
the Kindergarten Readiness testing. Testing should be done in
September or after, due to the gap over the summer slide.
• Comparing VPK testing and Kindergarten testing is not
comparing apples to apples.
Judy asked for a copy of the tests. Elizabeth will provide her with a
copy.
Kathleen Woodring was not present to provide an update.
Ryan provided the following highlights:
• Currently staying busy with lots of events and projects.
• A lot of activity and projects has increased tremendously.
• High School Business Plan competition.
Holly Gerlach was not present to provide an update.
Commissioner Stone provided the following highlights:
• Public hearings on the budget start on September 6th.
• Commission budget now includes School Resource Officers
for the schools.
• Spay and neuter fee has been lowered to $25.
• Chewy is donating food for animals through VOCAL.
• An animal coalition has been formed.
• The workshop on the Aquatic Center for Marion County is
looking at State property by the Rotary Complex. It will include
trails that will lead bike riders to the Rotary Complex.
Jennifer provided the below update on behalf of Kathy Robbins:
• First year Success Program a mandatory class for first time
students to take.
• Teacher Education – good enrollments, looking to open
elementary school teaching program to expand.
• Hiring for teachers for the Lab School has been challenging, as
well.
• Florida Minority Teachers Fund – Call CF for more information.
• Day at Appleton – FCCECEN – Bebe is handling the agenda
for the March 30th Childcare Conference.
Cara Meeks provided the following highlights:
• January – New companies for MMA, Wellcare-Staywell will be
taking on CMS in January.
Mark provided the following highlights:
• Working with Chrissy on the car seat classes.
• Currently looking for more trainers. Once we have trainers we
will have a mobile training unit. Also, need more technicians to
cover the two events this year.
• In June 2018, there were 27 online surveys completed.
• In July 2018, there were 31 online surveys completed.
The ELCMC Events Calendar was included for planning and
informational purposes.
A successful story was distributed for informational purposes.
Roseann provided the following highlights:
• The ELC received an increase in school readiness funding
• ELC received match funding from Publix
• CDBG funding for flooring and case management has been
awarded to the ELC

Action
DISCUSSION

DISCUSSION
DISCUSSION

DISCUSSION
DISCUSSION

INFORMATION
INFORMATION
INFORMATION
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Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019

Coalition Programs
Line #

Budget Line Item Account
Name

Year to Date Analysis

Actual Expenses
as of 8/31/18
2018-19 Budget
% of Year % of Budget Over/Under Variance %

001

SR Direct Child Services

$ 8,059,846.22

$

1,558,989.57

16.67%

19.34%

Over

2.68%

002

VPK Direct Child Services

$ 5,309,782.00

$

502,271.42

16.67%

9.46%

Under

-7.21%

003

Other Direct Child Services

$

237,999.96

$

20,766.10

16.67%

8.73%

Under

-7.94%

004

Salaries and Benefits

$ 1,688,359.87

$

254,019.71

16.67%

15.05%

Under

-1.62%

005

Staff Development

$

13,386.00

$

4,564.15

16.67%

34.10%

Over

17.43%

006

Professional Services

$

141,924.00

$

10,620.25

16.67%

7.48%

Under

-9.18%

007

Occupancy

$

51,633.20

$

7,881.73

16.67%

15.26%

Under

-1.40%

008

Postage, Freight, and Delivery

$

3,825.00

$

381.23

16.67%

9.97%

Under

-6.70%

009

Equipment Leases

$

6,867.41

$

1,161.20

16.67%

16.91%

Over

0.24%

010

Supplies

$

16,700.00

$

2,272.95

16.67%

13.61%

Under

-3.06%

011

Communications

$

9,744.64

$

1,180.20

16.67%

12.11%

Under

-4.56%

012

Insurance

$

26,732.61

$

4,230.65

16.67%

15.83%

Under

-0.84%

013

Tangible Personal Property

$

17,940.00

$

587.67

16.67%

3.28%

Under

014

Quality Initiatives

$

281,650.00

$

17,069.73

16.67%

6.06%

015

OEL Special Projects

$

29,804.94

$

16.67%

016

Travel

$

21,808.50

$

5,454.55

017

Other Expenses

$

47,883.17

$

018

Other Program Expenses (SB6) $

56,508.00

019

Depreciation/PY Adjustment
2

TOTAL

Variance Analysis Notes

Agency Plan of Action

Timing of conferences

No adjustment necessary

-13.39%

Timing of purchases

No adjustment necessary

Under

-10.61%

Timing of purchases

No adjustment necessary

0.00%

Under

-16.67%

Not effective until October 1

No adjustment necessary

16.67%

25.01%

Over

8.34%

15,713.02

16.67%

32.82%

Over

16.15%

Timing of purchases

No adjustment necessary

$

2,157.94

16.67%

3.82%

Under

-12.85%

Timing of purchases

No adjustment necessary

45,471.04

$

7,697.98

16.67%

16.93%

Over

0.26%

$ 16,067,866.56

$

2,417,020.05

16.67%

15.04%

Under

-1.62%

$

-
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CURRENT EVENTS
CEO Report 2018 - 2019

July
Customer (Parent/Caregiver) Service
Inclusion Services
Incoming Calls
Outgoing Calls
Fraud Reports
Quality Initiative Services
Number of SR Child Care Providers
Number of VPK Child Care Providers
Trainings Provided
Attendees
Community Awareness
Number of Staff Attended Events
Children's Books, Parent Resources, Etc.
distributed to the Community
(Events/Agencies/Businesses)
ELCMC Website Statistics
Number of Visits
Average Visits Per Day
Facebook Total Likes
Parent Education
Read Aloud Partners
Bucket of Books
Pack N Plays distributed
Trainings Conducted
Staff Development
Presentations
Trainings Attended

August September October November December January February March

4
1,479
1,174
0

5
3,185
2,473
2

7
1,443
1,545
0

103
57
9
101

99
102
5
160

103
102
1
33

3

10

18

422

734

713

5,203
168
795

5,734
185
807

3,351
112
851

350
256
17
2

353
259
0
7

348
258
0
10

1
8

2
19

8
15

For specific details on any of the above activities plese contact Beatriz Montalvo at bmontalvo@elc-marion.org

April

May

June
16
6,107
5,192
2
YTD Total
305
261
15
294
YTD Total
31

1,869
YTD Total
14,288
465
2,453
YTD Total
1,051
773
17
19
YTD Total
11
42
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In partnership with

Action Sheet
FULL BOARD
October 25, 2018

SUBJECT:

Board of Directors Appointment

PROPOSED ACTION
Approve Mandated Board Member Appointment for Designee of District Superintendent of
Schools for the Marion County Public Schools effective October 3, 2018.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
The position of District Superintendent of School or her designee is a mandated position in the
Florida Statutes for the ELCMC Board of Directors, and is a part of the ELCMC By-Laws.
Superintendent Dr. Heidi Maier has appointed Dr. Tara Huls, Program Specialist, Educator
Preparation, to serve as the Marion County Superintendent of School’s designee on the
ELCMC Board of Directors, effective October 3, 2018.
The re-assignment of Holly Gerlach by the Superintendent was received via email and effective
October 1, 2018.
On October 11, 2018 the Executive Committee unanimously approved as stated above.

Supporting Documentation Available:
• ELCMC By-Laws and Florida Statutes
• MCPS Appointment from Superintendent Dr. Heidi Maier for Dr. Tara Huls
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FY 2018 – 2019 Board of Directors Membership
Member Name
1. Roberta Brant

Position
Governor Appointed

Organization
Self-employed

Term
2 YRS
4/30/19

2. Brenda Ford,
CPA

Governor Appointed

Crippen & Co.

1st Term
4/30/20

3. Commissioner
Michelle Stone

County Commissioner

Marion County Board of
County Commissioners

N/A

4. Kathy Robbins

Florida College
System Institution

College of Central Florida

N/A

5. Richard
Forrester

Child Care
Regulations/
DCF Designee
Regional CareerSource
Board

Department of Children
and Families

N/A

CLM CareerSource

N/A

District Superintendent
of Schools or Designee

Marion County School
District

N/A

8. Kelly Rogers

Head Start Director

Episcopal Children’s
Services

N/A

9. Doug Day,
CPA,
Treasurer
10. Robert Colen,
Chair

Private Sector

Day & Day, PA

1st Term
6/30/19

Governor Appointed

On Top of the World

4 YRS.
4/30/21

11. Melissa
Hancock, Esq.
12. Ryan Lilly

Private Sector

Melissa K. Hancock, P.A.

Private Sector

Ocala CEP

13. Lisa Seiffer

Private Sector

Signature Brands, LLC

14. Cara Meeks,
Secretary
15. Judy Johnson

Private Sector

Wellcare Health Plans, Inc.

Private Sector

Words/Myth Enterprises

16. Jeanne
Henningsen,
M.S., CPC
17. Earlene Carte

Private Sector

Jeanne Henningsen
Worldwide

2nd Term
6/30/21
1st Term
4/30/21
2nd Term
6/30/21
2nd Term
6/30/22
2nd Term
6/30/22
1st Term
6/30/21

Faith-based Child
Care Provider
Family for-profit Child
Care Provider
Representative
Private for-profit Child
Care Provider
Representative
Representative of
Program Under
Disabilities Education
Act
County Health
Department Designee

First Assembly of God
Christian School
Family Child Care Provider

1st Term
6/30/20
2nd Term
6/30/21

Kinderoo Children’s
Academy, Inc.

2nd Term
6/30/21

6. Kathleen
Woodring, Past
Vice-Chair
7. Dr. Tara Huls

18. Gwen Wilson

19. Paola Lopez,
Vice-Chair
20. VACANT

21. Mark Lander

Florida Department of Health
in Marion County

N/A
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In partnership with

Action Sheet
FULL BOARD
October 25, 2018
SUBJECT:

2018-2019 ELCMC Proposed Line Item Budget revision – 1B

PROPOSED ACTION
Approve 2017-2018 ELCMC Proposed Line Item Budget revision (1B).
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Revisions in the budget are to reallocate line items based upon the following factors:
Revenue
➢ Increase in School Readiness funding:
o Direct Services - $476,937
o CCEP Funding – $19,663
o Program Assessment Funding - $46,350
o Performance Funding Program - $98,744
➢ Marion County Government – Community Development Block Grant
o Facilities (flooring) - $38,125
o Outreach - $31,170
➢ Removal of grants
o United Way of Marion County – Progress Dunnellon - $52,500
o Community Foundation (SB6 program addition) - $65,000
Expenditures
➢ Realignment of salary and benefits
o Actual payroll increases
o Reduction in positions to loss of original proposed funding (Community
Foundation and CDBG funding)
o Staff turnover
➢ Additional direct services due to additional funding from OEL.
➢ Realign of Success by 6 expenses due to loss of original proposed Community
Foundation funding
➢ Reclass from Professional Services: Other to in Professional Services: Program
Agency (Subrecipient) to correct line item as per OEL universal chart of accounts
On October 11, 2018 the Executive Committee unanimously approved as stated above.
Supporting Documentation Included:
• 2018-2019 ELCMC proposed line item budget revision
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Early Learning Coalition of Marion County, Inc.
2018 - 2019 Approved Budget and Revisions
Proposed Budget
2018-19
GL Acct. Revenues
Contracts, Grants, and Other Financial Assistance
4001 FOEL: School Readiness(inc.CCEP & Program Assessment)
4001 FOEL: Voluntary Pre-kindergarten
4001 FOEL: Outreach & Awareness
4001 FOEL: Performance Funding Project
4001 CF: Help Me Grow
4010 Grant: School Board of Marion County (YPP)
4010 Grant: Marion County (Match)
4010 Grant: City of Ocala (Match)
4010 Grant: Marion County (CDBG-Facilities)
4010 Grant: Marion County (CDBG-Outreach)
4020 Grant: Uncommitted (Match)
4020 Grant: United Way (Match)
4020 Grant: United Way (Project Dunnellon)
4020 Grant: United Way (Success by 6)
4020 Grant: Kiwanis (SB6)
4020 Grant: Comm Fdt (SB6)
4020 Grant: From Cradle to College Foundation
4050 Gifts, Donations, and Pledges
Investment Earnings
4101 Interest income
4991 Realized Gain on Investments
4992 Unrealized Gain on Investments
Other Miscellaneous Revenue
4201 Miscellaneous income
4210 Revenue: Provider Trainings
4300 Revenue: Special Events
Revenue: Magazine (Building Fund)
4900 Revenue: Development (Building Fund)
4999 In-Kind
Total Revenue
Expenditures
Capital Expenditures
1502 Fixed Asset: Building
Employer Provided Salaries and Benefits
5000 Salary: Directors (990 reportable)
5001 Salary: Exempt
5002 Salary: Hourly
5003 Salary: PLT Accrual
5005 Payroll Tax: Social Security
5006 Payroll Tax: Medicare
5007 Payroll Tax: SUTA
5010 Insurance: Health
5011 Insurance: Dental
5020 Retirement: ER Contribution
5030 Insurance: Life
5031 Insurance: Short-term Disability
5032 Insurance: Long-term Disability
Staff Development
5100 Staff Development (OEL, Unrestricted)
Professional Services
6000
Professional Services: Consultant
6001 Professional Services: Accounting
6002 Professional Services: Auditing
6005 Professional Services: IT Management
6010 Professional Services: Legal
6015 Professional Services: Program Agency
6020
Professional Services: Temp Employment
6025 Professional Services: Printing Svcs
6030 Professional Services: Bldg Rprs & Mtnc
6035 Professional Services: Other (Quality)
Direct Services - Child Care
6500 Direct Services
Occupancy
7000 Facility Rental (offsite events-Trainings)
7001 Utilities
7005 Janitorial Services
7007 Lawn Service
7008 Security System
7009 Pest Control
Postage, Freight, and Delivery
7050 Postage and Shipping
Equipment Leases
7100
Equipment Lease & Mtnc

$

$

$

$
$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

Revision 1F
9/27/2018

16,009,076.21
9,865,549.00
5,522,173.00
10,877.00
42,916.00
136,783.25
10,000.00
125,000.00
10,000.00
3,000.00
99,999.96
52,500.00
44,500.00
14,778.00
65,000.00
6,000.00
311.00
311.00
35,057.90
250.00
7,700.00
9,107.90
12,000.00
1,000.00
5,000.00
16,044,445.11

$

597,488.75 $
542,950.00
98,744.00
(0.25)
38,125.00
31,170.00
(52,500.00)
-

$

597,488.75

$

1,688,359.87
184,000.19
392,442.32
760,918.63
82,916.39
19,391.74
3,285.15
158,175.00
9,876.96
62,082.33
3,080.25
5,004.69
7,186.22
13,386.00
13,386.00
141,924.00
15,250.00
40,176.00
6,800.00
8,060.00
71,638.00
13,607,628.18
13,607,628.18
51,633.20
22,277.20
14,700.00
5,900.00
8,316.00
440.00
3,825.00
3,825.00
6,867.41
6,867.41

$

38,125.00
38,125.00
(69,357.78)
(303.48)
(35,808.54)
(37,150.42)
14,899.73
(3,731.72)
(1,040.73)
(215.08)
(3,767.00)
1,006.83
(4,474.33)
2.00
1,400.24
(175.28)
30,788.00
(30,788.00)
586,900.58
586,900.58
-

$

$

(65,000.00)
4,000.00
$

$

-

$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$

$

$
$

$
$

$
$

16,606,564.96
10,408,499.00
5,522,173.00
10,877.00
141,660.00
136,783.00
10,000.00
125,000.00
10,000.00
38,125.00
31,170.00
3,000.00
99,999.96
44,500.00
14,778.00
4,000.00
6,000.00
311.00
311.00
35,057.90
250.00
7,700.00
9,107.90
12,000.00
1,000.00
5,000.00
16,641,933.86
38,125.00
38,125.00
1,619,002.09
183,696.71
356,633.78
723,768.21
14,899.73
79,184.67
18,351.01
3,070.07
154,408.00
10,883.79
57,608.00
3,082.25
6,404.93
7,010.94
13,386.00
13,386.00
141,924.00
15,250.00
40,176.00
6,800.00
30,788.00
8,060.00
40,850.00
14,194,528.76
14,194,528.76
51,633.20
22,277.20
14,700.00
5,900.00
8,316.00
440.00
3,825.00
3,825.00
6,867.41
6,867.41
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Early Learning Coalition of Marion County, Inc.
2018 - 2019 Approved Budget and Revisions

Supplies
7006 Janitorial Supplies
7150 Office Supplies & Expense
7151 Copier Printing

Proposed Budget
2018-19
$
16,700.00
2,100.00
9,000.00
5,600.00

$

Revision 1F
9/27/2018
$
16,700.00
2,100.00
9,000.00
5,600.00
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Early Learning Coalition of Marion County, Inc.
2018 - 2019 Approved Budget and Revisions

Communications
7200 Communication: Land Line
7201 Communication: Cellular
7202 Communication: Internet
Insurance
7251 Insurance: D&O
7255 Insurance: Automobile (Rental)
7260 Insurance: General Liability
7265 Insurance: Workers Compensation
8
7270 Insurance: Property
7275 Insurance: Other
Tangible Personal Property
7301 Equipment: = or > $1k
7302 Equipment: < $1k
7303 Furniture: = or > $1k
9
7304 Furniture: < $1k
Quality Initiatives
7401 Quality and Classroom Material
7405 Training Material
7410 Consumer Education & Outreach Material
7415 Grants to Providers
7420 Scholarship & Other Education Opportunities
7425 Wage Incentives
Other OEL Initiatives
7435 Provider Funding Project
Travel
7501 Travel: In-State
7505 Travel: Out of State
7510 Travel: In Service Area
Other Expenses
7600 Administration Fees (Community Foundation- Building)
7601 Bank fees
7602 Merchant Service Fees (Includes PayPal)
7603 Interest expense (HVAC Loan)
7605 Software-Licenses-Support
7610 Web services
7615 Other employee related expense
7616 EE Background Screening
7617 EE Drug Screening
7620 Membership Dues
7621 Subscriptions and Publications
7625 Taxes, licenses and fees
7901 Vending Machine Supplies
9999 In-Kind expenditure
Other Program Expenses (Success by 6)
8500 SB6 Childcare
8510 Infant Safe Sleep
8520 Car Seats
8530 Special Projects (Born Learning Trail, Read Aloud 15)
8540 Parent Education Training Material
8550 Food Services (Unallowable for match)
8551 Parent Incentive (Unallowable for match)
Depreciation
9001 Depreciation
Total Expenditures
Total Revenue
Total Expenditures
Net Proceeds

Proposed Budget
2018-19
$
9,744.64
6,240.64
2,100.00
1,404.00
$
26,732.61
8,653.68
536.07
421.00
5,597.30
7,657.94
3,866.62
$
17,940.00
16,440.00
1,500.00
$
281,650.00
120,000.00
6,000.00
72,650.00
82,500.00
500.00
$
29,804.94
29,804.94
$
21,808.50
15,000.00
2,000.00
4,808.50
$
47,883.17
180.00
299.70
2,296.87
20,523.70
2,500.00
2,614.00
420.00
528.00
8,186.00
5,039.90
295.00
5,000.00
$
56,508.00
9,720.00
4,000.00
1,000.00
12,278.00
6,000.00
15,610.00
7,900.00
$
45,471.04
45,471.04
$
16,067,866.56

$

16,044,445.11
16,067,866.56
(23,421.45)

$

Revision 1F
9/27/2018
1,500.00 $
11,244.64
1,500.00
7,740.64
2,100.00
1,404.00
(355.38) $
26,377.23
8,653.68
536.07
421.00
(355.38)
5,241.92
7,657.94
3,866.62
7,500.00 $
25,440.00
7,500.00
7,500.00
16,440.00
1,500.00
(50,000.00) $
231,650.00
120,000.00
2,500.00
8,500.00
72,650.00
(52,500.00)
30,000.00
500.00
83,104.06 $
112,909.00
83,104.06
112,909.00
2,191.50 $
24,000.00
15,000.00
1,000.00
3,000.00
1,191.50
6,000.00
1,170.00 $
49,053.17
120.00
300.00
300.00
300.00
299.70
2,296.87
20,523.70
2,500.00
2,614.00
420.00
528.00
8,186.00
5,039.90
295.00
750.00
750.00
5,000.00
(26,710.68) $
29,797.32
(7,020.00)
2,700.00
556.22
4,556.22
400.00
1,400.00
(836.90)
11,441.10
(1,600.00)
4,400.00
(12,560.00)
3,050.00
(5,650.00)
2,250.00
$
45,471.04
45,471.04
574,067.30 $ 16,641,933.86

$

597,488.75
574,067.30
23,421.45

$

$

$

$

$
$

$

$

$

$

16,641,933.86
16,641,933.86
0.00

Notes:
1
Consolidated budget now includes unrestricted and building accounts.
2
Budget deficit is caused by building (CDBG) depreciation which cannot be expensed under
the OEL funding. The Building fund has shown a decrease in net assets each year as
there is no revenue to support the depreciation expense.
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In partnership with

Action Sheet
FULL BOARD
October 25, 2018
SUBJECT:

Revisions to Fiscal Policy Manual
PROPOSED ACTION

Approve revisions and/or additional to the Fiscal Policy Manual.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
On June 24, 2014, the Board of Directors unanimously approved the current complete fiscal
manual.
Over the past two years OEL has been working with the Coalitions to update specific policies
and procedures to reflect changes within their CCDF grant agreement and requirements at
the federal level. This has led to a full re-write of the last approved fiscal policy and procedure
manual.
One June 28, 2018, the Board of Directors approved a portion of the fiscal policy changes
and updates as recommended by the Finance Committee.
The Finance Committee met on July 26, 2018 and again on September 27, 2018, to finalize the
remaining policy changes or additions to the Fiscal Policies.
The Finance Committee is recommending the following changes of additions to the Fiscal
Policies for 2018 – 2019.
FA210

COST SHARING AND MATCHING (IN-KIND) REPORTING

Current – Approved July 2014
Gifts and/or donations of goods and services made to the Coalition will be recorded according to
the methods outlined in Generally Accepted Accounting Procedures. Gifts or donations received
by the Coalition in excess of $100.00 fair market value will be posted to the general ledger as an
in-kind contribution. Those entries will only include those items the Coalition may have found
necessary to purchase or were not authorized by funding sources throughout the accounting
period.
Proposed Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
The Coalition shall accept and claim contributions as meeting a cost sharing or matching
requirement of a federal award.
FA270

GRANTS RECEIVABLE MANAGEMENT

Current – Effective July 1, 2014
To account for all grants receivable earned each month and submit required reimbursement
forms.
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Proposed Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
Remove policy, should be a procedure only.
FA280

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE MANAGEMENT

Current – Effective July 1, 2018
To ensure that all services are billed and recorded at authorized rates, payments are received
promptly, and balance sheet assets are representative of unpaid accounts. To prudently engage
control of all accounts receivable.
Proposed Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
Remove policy, should be a procedure only.
FA310

SUBRECIPIENT

Current
No current policy
Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
From time to time the Coalition may find it practical to make subawards of federal funds to other
organizations. All subawards in excess of the simplified acquisition threshold shall be subject to
the conflict of interest policies described in the preceding section. In addition, all subrecipients
must be approved in writing by the State or Federal awarding agency and agree to the
subrecipient monitoring provisions described in the next section.
FA320

POLITICAL INTERVENTION

Current
No current policy
Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
Consistent with its tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, the
Coalition shall not incur any expenditure for political intervention.
FA325

LOBBYING

Current
No current policy
Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
No lobbying expenditures may be charged directly or indirectly to any federal award.
FA330

CHARGING OF COSTS TO FEDERAL AWARDS

Current – Effective July 1, 2014
All costs charged to Coalition programs are screened for allowability in accordance with OMB
Circular A-122, “Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations.” Allocations are supported by the
Coalition’s Cost Allocation Plan as submitted and approved by the Office of Early Learning
annually. Costs are documented by copies of paid invoices; payroll records and other evidential
records as may be appropriate to document specific costs. An annual independent audit is
performed in compliance with OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments and
Non-Profit Organizations.”
Suggested Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
All costs charged to Coalition programs are reviewed for allowability in accordance with 2 CFR
Part 200, “Uniform administrative requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit Requirements for
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Federal Awards.” Allocations are supported by the Coalition’s Cost Allocation Plan as submitted
and approved by the Office of Early Learning annually. Costs are documented by copies of paid
invoices; payroll records and other evidential records as may be appropriate to document specific
costs.
FA360

CELL PHONES

Current
No current policy.
Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
The Coalition recognizes that certain job functions require that an employee be accessible when
away from the office or during times outside scheduled working hours. For this reason, the
Coalition will maintain a limited number of cell phones for employee use, one of which will be for
the CEO. The Coalition will include language in employment contracts, job descriptions, and
personnel manuals documenting the business reasons for providing employees with cell
phones.
Corporate cell phone holders will be required to sign a statement acknowledging that the cell
phone shall be used for legitimate organization-related business purposes, shall not be used
while driving. The cell phone holder also agrees to take reasonable precautions to protect the
cell phone from loss or theft by storing it in a secure location. Upon approval, a cell phone will
be issued bearing the names of both the individual and the Coalition.
While corporate-issued cell phones are intended for Coalition-related business use, the
Coalition recognizes that occasional personal use may occur. The Coalition employees should
make every effort to keep personal use of company cell phones to a minimum (less than 30
minutes per day). Because such employer-provided cell phones are considered to be a working
condition fringe benefit, the Coalition employees’ use of the cell phone for personal reasons
may be treated as excludable from the employees’ income as a de minimis fringe benefit. That
is, the value of personal use of an organization-owned cell phone will not be taxable income to
the employee.
FA380

CREDIT CARDS

Current – Effective July 1, 2014
To establish procedures for the use and security of Coalition credit cards.
Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
The Coalition recognizes that there will be occasions when there is a need to use a corporate
credit card for purchasing, travel, and other purposes. Therefore, the Coalition has credit cards
issued to the Chief Executive Officer. The primary card will be retained by the Chief Executive
Officer. A secondary card is maintained in the safe in the Chief Finance Officer’s office and may
be checked out when necessary, primarily to make travel arrangements or authorized
purchases in the absence of the Chief Executive Officer.
The card holder will be required to sign a statement acknowledging the following:
•

The card shall be used exclusively for legitimate Coalition-related business purposes.

•

The cardholder will avoid splitting purchase or service costs over multiple transactions to
circumvent the single transaction limit.

•

The cardholder agrees to take reasonable precautions to protect the card from loss or
theft by storing it in a secure location and understands the actions to take in case of theft
or loss.

20

•

The cardholder will follow all required purchasing policies and procedures. Please see
FA300 Purchasing Policy and Procedures for details.

•

The cardholder understands and agrees to disciplinary procedures for misuse of the
card.

FA390

PAYROLL AND RELATED POLICIES

Current – Effective July 1, 2014
To ensure that payroll disbursements are made only upon proper authorization of management to
bona fide employees, are properly recorded, and related legal requirements are complied with.
Control over payroll costs avoids waste and obtains maximum production from dollars expended
for services of employees. Payroll is the largest operating cost and deserves close attention. The
payroll costs are monitored monthly by comparison of budget to actual financial reports. The
control of payroll internal procedures and authorization are very important to eliminate potential
violations, secure accuracy and dependability, ensure tax laws are abided by and federal and state
payroll reports are provided. Complete and accurate records are kept to protect the employer
against labor disputes.
FA400

CASH AND CASH MANAGEMENT

Current – Effective July 1, 2014
It shall be the policy of ELCMC to maintain bank accounts for Coalition funds in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices and applicable state and federal guidelines.
Proposed Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
The Coalition shall maintain bank accounts for Coalition funds in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices and applicable state and federal guidelines.
FA410

PREPAID EXPENSES

Current
No current policy.
Proposed - as recommended by the Finance Committee
The Coalition treats payments of expenses that are for a future fiscal year as prepaid expenses
and will expense these items into the proper accounting period.
FA420

INVESTMENTS

Current
To ensure that endowments, securities and investment assets are properly recorded, adequately
safeguarded and managed in accordance with any related restrictions and prudent investment
management practices and that all investment income due is promptly collected and deposited and
properly recorded.
Proposed Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
The Coalition treats all assets of the Coalition, including those funds that are legally
unrestricted, as though they are held in a fiduciary capacity for the purpose of accomplishing the
Coalition’s tax-exempt mission. Hence, the policies described in this section are to be
interpreted in light of that overall sense of stewardship, and the investment standards shall be
those of a prudent investor.
This Investment Policy has been arrived at upon consideration by the Finance Committee of
a wide range of policies, and describes the prudent investment process the Finance
Committee deems appropriate. This process includes offering various asset classes and
investment management styles that, in total, are expected to offer the opportunity to diversify
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the portfolio in a manner consistent with the specified risk and return requirements of the
portfolio.
Funds to be invested do not include those from federal awards. Such funds will be spent on
program requirements as budgeted or returned to the awarding agency. Any advances of
federal funds will be maintained in an interest-bearing account. Interest earned on such funds
will be allocated to federal grants based on an average daily balance, and any additional
interest will be returned to the Florida Office of Early Learning.
FA430

TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT POLICY

Current – Effective February 26, 2015
The Coalition shall inventory all furniture and computer equipment, i.e. computers, monitors,
laptops, etc. in accordance with all federal regulation, state statutes, state rule, and state policy.
This does not include replacement keyboards and mouse. The items will be found in the
general ledger detail under account number 7301 for computer equipment and 7303 for
furniture.
In accordance with Coalition grant agreements with Florida’s Office of Early Learning (OEL),
Equipment and other capital expenditures cost item, prior approval must be requested for all
items that meet the greater of the requestor’s capitalization threshold or $5,000. Acquisitions or
creation of software applications that meet the capitalization requirements of generally accepted
accounting principles also require prior approval. Fixed assets will be found in the general
ledger detail under the account numbers ranging from 1500 through 1503 with accumulated
depreciation between 1600 and 1602.
For the purposes of the Coalition the custodianship has been assigned to the Chief Finance
Officer or their designee. Custodian’s delegates shall consist of the finance department staff
and others if needed.
Upon the dissolution of the Coalition, all items of material value purchased with funds allocated
by the state shall revert to Florida’s Office of Early Learning. All remaining items of material value
shall be distributed to one or more active local 501(c)(3) organizations
Proposed Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee – based upon latest
OEL guidance
This policy is designed to ensure sound safeguards are in place to protect Coalition property
and is consistent with applicable federal regulations, Florida Statutes, and state rules relative to
the management, disposition, and utilization of tangible personal property purchased with state
and federal funds.
FA440

LEASES

Current
No current policy.
Proposed - as recommended by the Finance Committee
The Coalition classifies all leases in which the Coalition is a lessee as either capital or operating
leases. The Coalition shall utilize the criteria described in Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 13 in determining whether a lease is capital or operating in nature. Under those
criteria, a lease shall be treated as a capital lease if, at the time of entering into the lease, any of
the following factors are present:
1. The lease transfers ownership to the Coalition at the end of the lease term.
2. The lease contains a bargain purchase option.
3. The lease term is equal to 75% or more of the estimated economic life of the leased
property.
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4. The present value of the minimum lease payments is 90% or more of the fair value of
the leased property (using, as the interest rate, the lesser of the Coalition's incremental
borrowing rate or, if known, the lessor's implicit rate).
All leases that do not possess any of the four preceding characteristics shall be treated as
operating leases. In addition, all leases that are immaterial in nature shall be accounted for as
operating leases.
FA450

SOFTWARE ACQUISITION AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Current
No current policy.
Proposed - as recommended by the Finance Committee
The Coalition recognizes that information technology is critical to the Coalition’s success, and
affirms our commitment to ensure ongoing effective, efficient, and economical support and
development of its information technology environment in support of the Coalition’s mission.
FA460

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Current
No current policy.
Proposed - as recommended by the Finance Committee
The Coalition will recognize an intangible asset if, and only if:
•

it has a cost greater than $5,000, and

•

it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the Coalition, and

•

the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

FA470

ASSET IMPAIRMENT

Current
No current policy.
Proposed - as recommended by the Finance Committee
Long-lived assets of the Coalition include personal property and equipment, land, buildings,
intangible assets, and other noncurrent assets. In connection with long-lived assets, the
Coalition shall record an impairment loss when the carrying amount (book value, net of any
accumulated depreciation or amortization) is both:
1. Not recoverable (through sale, etc.); and
2. in excess of the asset’s fair value.
Long-lived assets shall be tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that an asset’s carrying value may be impaired. Examples of such events or
circumstances that the Coalition shall consider include:
1. A significant decrease in the market price of a long-lived asset.
2. A significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which a long-lived asset is being
used or in its physical condition.
3. A significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate that could affect
the value of a long-lived asset, including an adverse action by a regulator.

23

4. An accumulation of costs significantly in excess of the amount originally expected for the
acquisition or construction of a long-lived asset.
5. A current-period operating or cash flow loss combined with a history of operating or cash
flow losses or a projection or forecast that indicates continuing losses associated with
the use of a long-lived asset.
6. A current expectation that, more likely than not, a long-lived asset will be sold or
otherwise disposed of significantly before the end of its previously estimated useful life.
If the Coalition records an impairment loss in connection with a long-lived asset subject to
depreciation or amortization, the reduced basis resulting from recording the loss shall be used
as a new basis for calculating future periods’ depreciation or amortization.
FA470

FAIR VALUE ACCOUNTING

Current
No current policy.
Proposed - as recommended by the Finance Committee
The term “fair value” shall be defined as it is in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) 157: the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Determination of fair value shall be performed by the individuals identified in this manual
associated with each type of fair value accounting issues. All fair value determinations in
excess of $500 shall be reviewed and approved by the CFO.
FA700

BUDGETING

Current – Effective July 1, 2014
Budgets translate the organization’s strategic objectives into a financial plan of action that specifies
how its resources will be utilized to accomplish these objectives. The purpose of an operating budget
is to provide a financial guideline for management in overseeing revenues and services necessary
for the attainment of stated goals and objectives of the organization for the current fiscal year.
Proposed Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
Budgeting is an integral part of managing any organization in that it is concerned with the
translation of organizational goals and objectives into financial terms. A budget should be
designed and prepared to direct the most efficient and prudent use of the organization's
financial and human resources. A budget is a management commitment of a plan for present
and future organizational activities that will ensure survival. It provides an opportunity to
examine the composition and viability of the organization's programs and activities
simultaneously in light of the available resources.
Budgets are also prepared for funding sources, and each grant manager must be aware of
budget modification requirements. Awarding agencies may or may not require approval for
changes in line items. The Coalition will document and follow all such requirements.
FA710

ANNUAL AUDIT

Current – Effective July 1, 2014
It is the policy of ELCMC to contract for an independent audit of Coalition records for each fiscal
year, in accordance with applicable laws and funding source requirements.
Proposed Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
The Coalition will arrange for an annual audit of the Coalition's financial statements to be
conducted by an independent accounting firm. The independent accounting firm selected by
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the Board of Directors will be required to communicate directly with the Coalition's Finance
Committee upon the completion of their audit. In addition, members of the Finance Committee
and Executive Committee are authorized to initiate communication directly with the independent
accounting firm.
Audited financial statements, including the auditor's opinion thereon, will be submitted and
presented to the Board of Directors by the independent accounting firm at the Coalition’s Board
Meeting, after the financial statements have been reviewed and approved by the Finance
Committee.
FA720

INSURANCE

Current – Effective July 1, 2014
Insurance is the business of insuring persons and/or property by contract whereby one party agrees
to indemnify or guarantee another against loss by a specified contingent event or peril for a sum or
premium. The cost is allocated to the appropriate programs use for the insurance coverage.
Proposed Revision - as recommended by the Finance Committee
It is fiscally prudent to have an active risk management program that includes a comprehensive
insurance package. This will ensure the viability and continued operations of the Coalition.
The Coalition maintains adequate insurance against general liability, as well as coverage for
buildings, contents, computers, fine arts, equipment, machinery, and other items of value.
On October 11, 2018 the Executive Committee unanimously approved as stated above.
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In partnership with

Action Sheet
FULL BOARD
October 25, 2018

SUBJECT:

Audit Request for Proposal

PROPOSED ACTION
Approve Audit Request for Proposal.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
The Coalition last completed a Request for Proposal (RFP) in June 2014. The terms were for
a three-year contract effective with the 2013-14 fiscal year and an option for two (2) additional
years, through fiscal year 2017-18. The Finance Committee chose to use the optional two (2)
additional years.
The Request for Proposal is for a single year contract (fiscal year 2018-19) with an option for
three (3) years (fiscal years 2019-20, 2020-21, and 2021-22).
The Finance Committee met on September 2, 2018, and conducted an initial review of the
draft RFP, and a second meeting via conference call on October 10, 2018, to finalize the
Audit RFP. The Finance Committee has approved the RFP and is presenting to the
Executive Committee on October 11, 2018.
On October 11, 2018 the Executive Committee unanimously approved as stated above.
Supporting Documentation Included:
• Audit Request for Proposal
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
FOR EXTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES

Date RFP Available: December 3, 2018
Closing Date and Time for Receipt of Proposals:
January 11, 2019 at 3:30 P.M.

2300 SW 17th Road
Ocala, FL 34470-2006
Phone (352) 369-2315 Fax (352) 369-2475
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SECTION I – INTRODUCTION
A. Introduction
The Early Learning Coalition of Marion County, Inc. (Coalition) invites qualified independent
certified public accountants (Respondent) to submit proposals for providing financial and
compliance auditing services as described in this Request for Proposal (RFP). In order to be
considered, written proposals, using the format described herein, must be received by 3:30 p.m.
Eastern Standard Time on January 11, 2019, at the Coalition’s office located at 2300 SW 17th
Road, Ocala, FL 34471-2006.
B. Background
In 1999, the Florida Legislature passed the School Readiness (SR) Act. The Act created the
Florida Partnership for School Readiness. In addition, the Act called for the creation of local
school readiness coalitions whose goals were to improve the readiness of children when they
enter school.
With specific membership designated by Florida Statutes, 57 school readiness coalitions were
formed throughout the state covering all 67 counties.
In 2001, the Florida Partnership for School Readiness was transferred from the Executive Office
of the Governor to the Agency for Workforce Innovation for administrative purposes. The funds
for the Pre-Kindergarten, subsidized Child Care, Even Start, First Start, Migrant PreKindergarten, and other programs were managed by the Agency for Workforce Innovation and
distributed through the local coalition.
In early 2002, the State passed Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten (VPK) legislation, which placed local
responsibility for the VPK program with the local school readiness coalitions. The coalitions have
been renamed “Early Learning Coalitions” to reflect their greater role in meeting the early
care and education needs of children and their families. Coalitions now fall under the direction
and funding of Florida’s Office of Early Learning (FOEL).
The Coalition is charged with assessing the early care and education resources available in our
community and developing local plans to address identified needs of children and their families.
The Coalition funds and administers a system of services designed to help ensure that children
are ready for school when they enter kindergarten. In addition, the Coalition helps give parents
support services to enable them to be stable and strong.

The Coalition’s current budget for SR and VPK combined is over $15 million. We normally have
between 100 and 200 active providers. This budget is funded by a mix of federal, state and local
grants. The Coalition is charged with using this funding effectively and efficiently to achieve
program goals.
The Coalition also received several mini-grants and contributions for other programs that
enhance the School Readiness Program. Examples include grants from United Way of Marion
County for the Success by 6 Program and the Children’s Forum for the Help Me Grow program
as well as funding from Kiwanis Club for various items.
C. History of Organization
The Marion County School Readiness Coalition, Inc. was founded on November 17, 1999, and
is governed by applicable state and federal laws, rules, and regulations including, but not limited
to the authority for SR and VPK and its related programs originally provided in Part 5 of Ch. 1002,
F.S., Sections 411.01, F.S., 230.2303, F.S., Part A Title IV of the Social Security Act, 45 CFR
Parts 98, 99, and 260, and Rule 65C-21.01, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).
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The Coalition is governed by a local volunteer board of directors and programs are administered
by Coalition employees. The Coalition is a private non-profit organization with exempt status
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
D. Statement of Purpose
The objective of this competitive Request for Proposal (“RFP”) is to obtain the service of a public
accounting firm whose principal officers are independent certified public accountants to perform
financial and compliance auditing services.
E. Who May Respond
Only licensed certified public accounting firms may respond to this RFP.
F. Single Point of Contact
The single point of contact is the staff member identified by the Coalition to manage the process
of the RFP. The only contact person with respect to any or all aspects of this RFP is DeAnna
Johnson, Chief Finance Officer, and she can be reached via e-mail at djohnson@elc-marion.org.
G. Inquiries
Respondents may submit only written inquiries to the Coalition for clarification regarding to this
RFP on or before 5:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time no later than December 17, 2018. All
inquiries requesting clarification regarding this RFP are to be directed, via email, to the Chief
Finance Officer, at djohnson@elc-marion.org. Inquiries by phone will not be accepted.
Information obtained from any other source is not official and should not be relied on. Responses
to written inquiries will be posted to the Coalition website: www.elc-marion.org no later than
December 21, 2018, 4:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time. It is the responsibility of the Respondent
to ensure that written inquiries have been received by the contact person listed above.
H. Coalition Organizational Structure
The Coalition has a Finance Committee that serves as the Audit Committee and reports to the
full Coalition Board of Directors. In performing its duties, the awarded independent certified
public accounting firm will have substantial interaction with the Finance Committee. This
interaction shall include, but not be limited to: reviewing the scope of services, giving updates
on the progress of the audit, discussing the results of the audit, and discussing management
letter items. Presentation of the items above shall also be made to the Finance Committee
and\or full Coalition Board of Directors at regularly scheduled Coalition meetings.
I.

Small and/or Minority Owned Business

Efforts will be made by the Coalition to utilize small business and minority-owned business. A
Respondent qualifies as a small business firm if it meets the definition of “small business” as
established by the Small Business Administration (13 CFR 121.201).
J. Prohibition of Lobbying
Any Respondent or lobbyist, paid or unpaid, for a Respondent is prohibited from having any
private communication concerning the procurement process or any response to the procurement
process with any Coalition Board Member, the Chief Executive Officer, or any employee of the
Coalition after the issuance of this RFP and until completion of the contract award. A proposal
from any organization will be disqualified when the Respondent (or a lobbyist, paid or unpaid, for
the Respondent) violates this condition of the procurement process.
K. Conflict of Interest
All Respondents must disclose in their Letter of Certification the name of any officer, director or
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agent who is also a Coalition employee or board member. All Respondents must disclose the
name of any Coalition employee who owns, directly or indirectly, any interest in the
Respondent’s business or any of its branches. All Respondents must disclose any business
relationships or family relations with any officer, board member, subcontractor, or employee of
the Coalition.
L. Public Record
All submitted proposals, certification, and included or attached information shall become public
records upon their delivery to the Coalition in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.
Respondents must invoke the exemptions of disclosure provided by law, in their proposals by
providing the specific mandatory authority for the claimed exemption, identifying the data or other
materials to be protected, and state the reason, in writing, why the exclusion from public
disclosure is necessary. Such claimed exempt information shall be segregated from the
remainder of the proposal.
M. Right to reject Proposals and Waive Non-Material Irregularities
The Coalition reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals, waive any irregularities
and technicalities contained therein, and may, at its sole discretion request a clarification of other
information to evaluate any or all proposals. Respondents may be required to submit evidence
of qualifications or any other information as the Coalition may deem necessary.
N. Trade Secret and Confidential Materials
The Coalition will attempt to afford protection from disclosure of any trade secret as defined in
section 812.081, Florida Statutes, where identified as such in the proposal, to the extent
permitted under section 815.04, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. Any
Respondent acknowledges, however, that the protection afforded by section 815.04, Florida
Statutes, is incomplete, and it is hereby agreed by the Respondent and the Coalition that no right
or remedy for damages arises from any disclosure.
O. Compliance with Laws, Rules, and Regulations
The Successful Respondent shall for itself, and it shall cause each of its employees, agents,
representatives, contractors and subcontractors to continuously comply with all federal, state,
and local laws, rules, regulations, codes, ordinances, statutes, and orders of any public authority
bearing on the performance of the awarded Contract. The Successful Respondent shall ensure
throughout the duration of the Contract that it, and all its contractors and subcontractors of any
tier, shall be properly licensed and certified continuously throughout the duration of all work
performed and services provided on accordance with the resulting Contract. All such licensing
and certification shall be at the sole cost of each contractor and subcontractor. Upon request,
the Respondent shall furnish to the Coalition copies of any licenses, permits or certification
required to comply with any law, rule, regulation, code, ordinance, statute and order referenced
herein.
Lack of knowledge by the Respondent will in no way be a cause for relief from responsibility.
Respondents doing business with the Coalition will be required to attest to compliance with the
following federal and state rules and regulations:
•

Equal Employment Opportunity (EO 11246 as amended by EO 11375 and supplemented
by regulation 41 CFR part 60)

•

Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (18 USC 874 and 40 USA 276c)

•

Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 USC 276a to a-7)
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P.

•

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC 327-333)

•

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement (37 CFR part 401)

•

Clean Air Act (42 USC 7401 et. seq.) and Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 USC)
1251 et. seq.), as amended

•

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 USC 1352)

•

Debarment and Suspension (EO 12549 and EO 12689)

•

Remedies Clause (45 CFR 92.32(i)(2)

•

Energy Policy and Conservation Act (45 CFR part 92.36(i)(13)
Disqualification

The RFP and the Respondent shall be disqualified under the following conditions:
The Respondent or affiliate has been convicted of a public entity crime or has been placed on
the convicted vendor list or placed on the discriminatory vendor list pursuant to Section 287.134,
Florida Statutes.
1. The Respondent or affiliate has been placed on the federal suspension and debarment
list or otherwise determined to be ineligible to receive federal and/or state funds by an
action of any governmental agency.
2. The Respondent or affiliate has not complied with an official order of any agency of the
State of Florida or the United States Department of Labor to repay disallowed costs
incurred during its conduct or projects or services.
3. The Respondent or affiliate has failed to perform any contractual obligation with the
Coalition in a manner satisfactory to the Coalition or has failed to correct unsatisfactory
performance to the satisfaction of the Coalition.
4. The Respondent or affiliate had a contract terminated by the Coalition, by any other Early
Learning Coalition, FOEL and by any other State agency for cause.
5. The Respondent or affiliate or any of its staff make contact in violation of the provisions of
the Cone of Silence as set forth in this proposal.
6. The Respondent or affiliate or any of its staff have participated in the development of the
RFP documents for this Solicitation.
7. The Respondent fails to maintain a valid license in the State of Florida to participate to
practice public accounting.
8. The Respondent submitted nonresponsive proposals as described in the RFP.
Q.

Protests and Disputes

Any Respondent who is adversely affected by the Coalition decisions or intended decisions
concerning a procurement solicitation has the right to appeal. The appeal process is as follows:
1. Submit a formal written protest within three (3) business days after the posting of the
Notice of Award to the Chief Finance Officer of the Coalition, describing, in detail, the
nature of the protest/dispute.
Attn: Chief Finance Officer
Early Learning Coalition of Marion County, Inc.
2300 SW 17th Road
Ocala, FL 34471-2006
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The Chief Finance Officer will review the appeal and respond in writing within five (5)
business days from the date of receipt of the formal written request. Should the Chief
Finance Officer require additional time to review the matter, the Respondent shall be
advised in writing (electronic and/or by mail) within five (5) business day period.
2. In the event the Chief Finance Officer’s response is not satisfactory to the Respondent,
an appeal to the Board of Directors may be requested. The appeal must be provided in
writing within five (5) calendar days from receipt of the response from the Coalition and
address it to:
Attn: Board Chair
Early Learning Coalition of Marion County, Inc.
2300 SW 17th Road
Ocala, FL 34471-2006
The appeal will be heard by the Board of Directors at a time set by the Coalition’s Board
Chair. The Board of Director’s decision will be made by majority of members present. A
written acknowledgement and a final resolution of the appeal will be made within thirty
(30) calendar days of the request. The result will be the final outcome on behalf of the
Coalition unless otherwise stated by Florida law.
R.

Withdrawal of Proposal

A written request for withdrawal, signed by the Respondent, must be received by the Coalition
prior to the proposal closing time 3:30 p.m. Eastern Standard Time on January 11, 2019.
S.

Tied Proposals

In the case of tied proposals, the Coalition reserves the right to negotiate terms with the most
qualified Respondents and make the award based on what it considers to be in the best interest
of the Coalition.
T.

Cost of Preparation of Proposal

All costs incurred in the preparation of a proposal responding to this RFP will be the
responsibility of the Respondent and will not be reimbursed by the Early Learning Coalition of
Marion County, Inc.
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SECTION II – SCOPE OF SERVICES
A. Statement of Work
The Coalition desires to receive proposals for the selection of an independent certified public
accounting firm to provide financial and compliance auditing services for a period of one fiscal
year. The contract between the Coalition and the winning Respondent may be extended for up to
three additional years, on a year-by-year basis. The first year of the agreement shall commence
with an audit of the Coalition’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.
The three additional one-year extensions, if opted for by the Coalition, would provide for a
continuation of auditing services by the winning Respondent for the fiscal years ending June 30,
2020, June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2022, respectively.
B. Description of Entity and Records to be Audited
The Coalition is a non-profit organization that serves Marion county in the state of Florida. The
Coalition is a private, non-profit corporation and has been determined to be exempt from federal
income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is governed by a minimum
15-member volunteer board of directors per Chapter 1002, Section 83, Florida Statutes.
Administrative office and all records are located at 2300 SW 17th Road, Ocala, FL 34471-2006.
The Coalition currently employs 27 full-time employees. The Coalition utilizes a required
Statewide Information System for provider and child eligibility, enrollments, attendance
processing and provider payment calculations and other activities. The Coalition is using Abila’s
MIP Fund Accounting software. The Coalition’s budget for School Readiness, Voluntary
Prekindergarten, Outreach and Awareness, and Performance Funding Project combined is
projected to be over $15 million for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2019. This budget is funded by
a mix of federal, state, local grants and private contributions. Majority funding comes from
federal and state awards as follow:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Pass-Through from Florida’s Office of Early Learning:
• Temporary Assistance for Needed Families

• CFDA Number 93.558

• Child Care and Development Block Grant

• CFDA Number 93.575

• Child Care Mandatory Matching Funds of the
Care and Development Fund
• Social Services Block Grant (SSBG)

• CFDA Number 93.596
• CFDA Number 93.667

Pass-through from the State of Florida
Florida’s Office of Early Learning
• Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Education Program

• CSFA Number 48.108

The allocation of funds received from FOEL for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018 was as follow:
Federal – 63%, State – 37%.
C. Services Desired
1. Annual Examination
The Respondent selected as a result of this RFP shall provide external independent
auditing services by examining the Coalition financial statements. The annual
examination performed by Respondent shall include, but not be limited to the following:
2. Financial Statement Audit
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The examination will be a financial and compliance audit made in accordance with
generally accepted government auditing standards. The primary purpose of the audit is
to express an opinion on the Coalition’s financial statements. The examination includes
examining transactions and accounts that support the amounts in the financial statements
and includes an overall view of Coalition’s financial statements. The audit procedures
used shall be sufficient to enable the Respondent to express an opinion on the
fairness of the Coalition’s presentation of its financial position, results of operations,
and cash flows in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. In
addition, such procedures should be adequate to determine whether Coalition operations
were conducted in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements including Florida
Statutes, Federal Laws, and Coalition policies and procedures.
3. Review of Internal Controls
The Respondent is required to review Coalition internal controls and obtain an
understanding of Coalition operations in order to properly plan auditing procedures,
identify areas of potential misstatements, and assess fraud risk. In addition, the
Respondent may need to test internal controls to assess the extent the controls can be
relied upon in order to reduce testing procedures. Also, internal control testing will be
required as part of the State and Federal single audits. Internal control management
letter comments and reportable conditions shall be communicated in writing in
accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAP).
4. Management Letter
A management letter will be issued for each year audited that will contain significant audit
findings. The following are some of the significant items that may be noted during the
performance of the audit:
•

Whether or not errors or irregularities reported in the preceding audit report have been
corrected.

•

Whether or not recommendations made in the preceding audit report have been
implemented.

•

If applicable, whether or not any errors or irregularities reported by the State of
Florida Office of the Auditor General concerning the preceding fiscal year have been
corrected or implemented.

•

If applicable, whether or not any recommendations made by the State of Florida
Office of the Auditor General concerning the preceding fiscal year have been
implemented.

• Violation of laws, rules, and regulations discovered within the scope of the audit.
• Illegal expenditures discovered within the scope of the audit.
• Improper or inadequate accounting procedures.
• Failure to properly record financial transactions.
• Other inaccuracies, irregularities, shortages or declarations, if any, discovered during
the audit.
• Recommendations to improve management, accounting procedures, internal controls,
and efficiency.
The successful Respondent shall make an immediate written report to the Finance
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Committee of all significant irregularities and any illegal acts as they become known to the
Respondent.
5. Single Audit
The required audits are to be conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards (GAAP), applicable auditing standards set forth in the Generally Accepted
Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS) issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, the Federal Single Audit Act of 1984 (Public Law 98-502), the Federal
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (Public Law 104-156) and Office of Management
(OMB) Uniform Grant Guidance (2 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 200,
previously OMB Circular A-133), the Florida Single Audit Act (215.97 F.S. and Chapter
10.650, Rules of the Auditor General and Chapter 691-5, Rules of the Department of
Financial Services).
In addition, the Federal Data Collection Form SF-SAC will be a required part of the
Single audit under audit contract.
6. Audit Report
Independent Auditor’s report must include the following financial statements and reports:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)

Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Activities
Statement of Functional Expense
Statement of Cash Flow
Notes to the Financial Statements
Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial
Assistance.
i) Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters based upon an Audit of Financial Statements
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
j) Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs
k) Management Letter
l) Organization’s Response to the Management Letter
7. Tax Return
The Respondent will be required to prepare the IRS Tax Form 990 Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax for all fiscal years under engagement contract and file return
electronically. The Respondent will be responsible for filing an extension to file return if
necessary.
8. Additional Services
The Coalition may determine that additional services are necessary and may contract with
the Respondent to perform those services. The Respondent shall perform additional
services only upon a written request from the Coalition Board or the Chief Executive
Officer. Additional services, if offered by the Respondent, may include but not be limited
to:
•

Performance of extended audit procedures
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All additional work shall be documented by engagement memorandums to be approved
by the Finance Committee. The fee for additional services shall be separately negotiated
at the time of the engagement for a not to exceed amount calculated in accordance with
the Respondent billing rates itemized in this RFP.
D. Time Requirements
The following is the expected timeline for the start and completion of proposed services.
1. Audit Plan
The successful Respondent shall work with the Coalition’s Chief Finance Officer to
develop a detailed plan for the audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, by no later
than March 31, 2019, after the execution of a professional services contract. In each
succeeding fiscal year for which audit services are provided, a detailed plan will be
provided to the Chief Finance Officer by March 31st of that year.
2. Commencement of the Audit
The Coalition will have all records prepared for the audit in a timely manner in order to
meet our reporting deadline. All appropriate personnel will be available to meet with the
successful Respondent’s audit team upon acceptance of the proposal and execution of
a professional contract.
3. Fieldwork
For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, and thereafter, fieldwork should commence the
first week of October to ensure that the reporting deadlines outlined in this RFP are met.
4. Required Notification
The Chief Executive Officer and/or Finance Committee, as appropriate under
professional guidelines, shall be notified immediately for any of following reasons:
schedule completion dates are in jeopardy, discovery of possible violations of laws or
significant non-compliance with contractual requirements, discovery of the possibility of a
fraudulent act, or discovery of a material weakness in internal controls.
5. Reporting Deadlines
December 30

Preliminary draft audit reports including the Management letter

January 15

Draft audit report and Form 990

February 5

Final audit report and Form 990

The reports will be presented to the Finance Committee at its January meeting and then
to the Coalition Executive Committee and Board of Directors at its February meetings.
E. Invoicing for Work
The Respondent shall prepare an estimate of total hours required to complete the engagement.
Progress will be determined by comparing the hours incurred to date to the estimated total hours
for the engagement.
Invoices shall be presented as work is completed at a maximum of one invoice per month. A
listing of hours incurred shall accompany the invoice in support of the billing calculation. The
final bill payment will be paid upon resolution of any open issues or delivery of any remaining
items.
F. Primary Point of Contact
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The Respondent shall identify a specific individual as a primary point of contact. This individual
will be responsible for the Respondent’s work product. The individual shall be available within
24 business hours’ telephone notice to accomplish the following:
• Attend meetings
• Respond to telephone calls
• Respond to specific inquires
G. Work papers
The Respondent shall retain all work papers for a period of at least 5 years. In addition, the
Respondent will provide the Coalition and or its assignees access, free of charge, to and copies
of any or all work papers for a period of at least 5 years.
The Respondent shall submit a copy of all work papers related to both State and Federal Single
Audit Requirements within 30 days of the Coalitions acceptance of final audit reports.
H. Support Personnel
Support personnel shall be made available by the Coalition to provide assistance to the
Respondent by identifying required records and gathering needed information. Support
personnel will perform these tasks to expedite the audit under the notice of request for assistance
so that they may effectively perform the day-to-day requirements of their position(s).
I.

Replacement of Audit Team Personnel

The Coalition will be accepting the Respondent’s proposal based upon the audit team listed in
the proposal. All changes to the audit team are subject to the Coalition’s approval. The
replacement team member must have credentials similar to the team member replaced. The
Coalition reserves the right to review the new team member’s resume and also interview the
replacement team member. The Respondent will be responsible for briefing all replacement
personnel on Coalition operations and on the status of audit work at no expense to the Coalition.
J. Audit Review
All audit reports prepared under this contract will be reviewed by the Coalition and its funding
sources to ensure compliance with the General Accounting Office’s (GAO) Government Auditing
Standards and other appropriate audit guides.
K. Exit Conference
An exit conference with representatives from the Coalition and the Respondent will be held after
the fieldwork. Observations and recommendations must be summarized in writing and discussed
with the Coalition’s management. It should include internal control and program compliance
observations and recommendations.
L. Confidentiality
The Respondent agrees to keep the information related to all contracts in strict confidence. Other
than reports submitted to the Coalition, the Respondent agrees not to publish, reproduce, or
otherwise divulge such information in whole or in part, in any manner or form, or authorize or
permit others to do so, taking such reasonable measures as are necessary to restrict access to
the information, while in the Respondent’s possession, to those employees on the Respondent’s
staff who must have the information on a “need to know” basis.
The Respondent agrees to immediately notify, in writing, the Coalition’s authorized
representative in the event the Respondent determines or has reason to suspect a breach of this
requirement.
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M. AICPA Professional Standards
The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Professional Standards state:
Ethics Interpretation 501-3 – Failure to follow standards and/or procedures or other
requirements in governmental audits.
Engagements for audits of government grants, government units or other recipients of
government monies typically require that such audits be in compliance with government
auditing standards, guides procedures, statutes, rules and regulations, in addition to
generally accepted auditing standards. If a member has accepted such an engagement and
undertakes an obligation to follow specified government auditing standards, guides,
procedures, statutes, rules and regulations, in addition to generally accepted auditing
standards, he is obligated to follow such requirements.
Failure to do so is an act discreditable to the profession in violation of Rule 501, unless the
member discloses in his report the fact that such requirements were not followed and the
reasons therefor.
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SECTION III – TERMS, CONDITIONS AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS
A. Federal and State Tax
The Coalition is exempt from federal taxes; in addition, the Coalition is exempt from State and
County sales taxes. A copy of the Coalitions tax exempt certificate may be found in
Attachment A. The Respondent doing business with the Coalition will not be exempted from
paying sales tax to their suppliers for materials to fulfill contractual obligations with the
Coalition, in addition, the successful Respondent will not be authorized to use the Coalition’s
tax exemption number in securing such materials.
B. Legal Requirements
It shall be the responsibility of the Respondent to be knowledgeable of all federal, state,
county and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that in any manner effect the items
covered herein. Lack of knowledge by the Respondent will in no way be a cause for relief
from responsibility.
Respondents doing business with the Coalition will be required to attest to compliance
with the following federal and state rules and regulations:
1. Equal Employment Opportunity (EO 11246 as amended by EO 11375 and
supplemented by regulation 41 CFR part 60)
2. Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (18 USC 874 and 40 USA 276c)
3. Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 USC 276a to a-7)
4. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC 327-333)
5. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement (37 CFR part 401)
6. Clean Air Act (42 USC 7401 et. seq.) and Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 USC
1251 et. seq.), as amended
7. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 USC 1352)
8. Debarment and Suspension (EO 12549 and EO 12689)
9. Remedies Clause (45 CFR 92.36 (i)(2)
10. Energy Policy and Conservation Act (45CFR part 92.36 (i) (13)
C. Agreement
A professional services agreement will be negotiated for any work to be performed as a
result of this RFP. The RFP, the proposal, and the resulting agreement will constitute the
complete agreement between the Respondent and the Coalition.
D. Trade Secret and Confidential Materials
If the application includes material which is deemed a trade secret (as defined by Section 812.081,
FS) or other confidential material exempt from the provisions of Chapter 119, FS, which the
Respondent does not wish to become public record, the following statement should be included
in the application:
“Trade Secrets as defined by Section 812.081, Florida Statutes, or other confidential materials
contained on applicable pages of this application shall not be used or disclosed, except for
evaluation purposes. However, if a contract is awarded to this offer or as a result in connection
with the submission of this program, the Coalition shall have the right to use or disclose the
information designated as trade secrets or confidential to the extent provided in the contract. This
restriction does not limit the Coalition’s right to use or disclose the information designated as trade
secrets or designated as confidential which is obtained from another source.”
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Any exemption claimed will be limited to the pertinent documents and must be supported by a
statutory exemption. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, nothing contained in the
application shall be deemed or interpreted to restrict or prevent the Coalition from complying with
the disclosure requirements of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, when material is incorrectly
identified as a trade secret or confidential information. By submitting an application, the applicant
covenants not to sue the Coalition and waives any claim against the Coalition arising under
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes or in connection with or as a result of any disclosures by the
Coalition in connection herewith.
E. Length of Contract Period

1. Contract Period/Renewal
The term of the agreement shall be for a period of up to one (1) year from the date of the
award. Each year, a professional services contract will be executed by the Coalition and
the selected auditing firm. Following the first year of the agreement, at the sole
discretion of the Coalition, three additional one-year periods may be awarded if the audit
services and costs are satisfactory. Satisfactory performance shall be determined within
the sole discretion of the Coalition. A final not-to-exceed amount will be determined
each year for the auditing services. If needed, the final contract may be extended for a
period of 90 days beyond the expiration date. The selected Respondent will be notified
when the recommendation has been acted upon by the Coalition Board of Directors.

2. Cancellation of Contract/Termination
In the event any of the provisions of this proposal are violated by the Respondent, the
Chief Executive Officer or a designee will give written notice to the auditing firm stating the
deficiencies. The auditing firm will have ten (10) days to correct the deficiencies. If the
auditing firm does not make the corrections within ten (10) days, then recommendation
will be made to the Coalition Board of Directors for immediate cancellation of the contract.
If the contract is cancelled, the Coalition may pursue any and all legal remedies as
provided herein and by law.
The Coalition reserves the right to terminate any contract resulting from this RFP, at any
time and for any reason, upon giving 30 day’s prior written notice to the other party. If the
contract should be terminated without cause the Coalition will be relieved of all obligations
under the contract. The Coalition would only be required to pay the auditing firm
remuneration for contract services actually performed as of the date of termination.
Access to any and all accounting records, tax returns, tax return work papers and audit
work papers will be provided to the Coalition immediately after the termination of the
contract, at no additional charge.
The auditing firm will have the option to terminate the contract without cause, upon written
notice to the Coalition’s Chief Executive Officer. The written notice must be received at
least 60 days prior to the effective date of the termination. Cancellation of the contract by
the auditing firm may result in removal of the firm from consideration for future
opportunities to contract with the Coalition for a period of three (3) years.

3. Default
In the event that the awarded Respondent should breach this contract, the Coalition
reserves the right to seek remedies in law and or in equity. Default would result in removal
of the firm from consideration for additional opportunities for a period of three (3) years.
4. Award of Contract
All Respondents to this RFP will receive written notification of the status of their proposal.
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SECTION IV – SELECTION METHOD AND INSTRUCTIONS
1. Selection Criteria
In order to be considered for evaluation, a firm:
•

Shall be licensed to practice public accounting in the State of Florida

•

Shall have performed audits under OMB’s Uniform Guidance in the not-for-profit or local
government sector for a minimum of each of the last 3 years.

•

In order to maintain comparability and enhance the review process, it is requested that
responses be completed and organized in the manner specified in Section V –
Instructions for the External Auditing Services RFP.

•

Respondents may obtain electronic copies of the forms by submitting a request and
providing an e-mail address. It is required that one (1) original proposal and five (5)
copies of the proposal be submitted. Plus, an electronic copy on a thumb drive.

2. Evaluation Process
The Auditor Selection Committee, consisting of the Finance Committee and Coalition staff,
will evaluate the proposals and prepare recommendations to the Coalition Board of
Directors. All proposals received will be reviewed in accordance with the criteria listed in
this RFP. The Committee may request a presentation by any or all Respondents to clarify
proposed plans and details, as part of the review and evaluation process. The Committee
may also ask additional questions to clarify the submitted proposal(s).
The Coalition Board of Directors shall make the final decision. When the Coalition Board has
selected the most successful Respondent, contract negotiations will begin. If a contract
agreement cannot be reached with the most successful Respondent, negotiations with that
firm will be formally terminated. The Coalition would then negotiate with the next most
successful Respondent until an agreement is reached. The Coalition may choose to modify
the choice of a selected Respondent if the Coalition determines that such a change is in its
best interest.
The Coalition reserves the right to reject any and all proposals submitted. The Coalition further
reserves the right to inspect the facilities, organization, and review evidence of the financial
condition of Respondents to assess their ability to perform the contract before awarding a
contract
3. Evaluation Criteria
In compliance with 2 CFR Part 200.319 – Competition, no geographic preferences will be given
in the evaluation of this proposal, since the section states, “The Non-Federal entity must conduct
procurement in a manner that prohibits the of statutorily or administratively imposed state of local
geographical preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals, except in those cases where
applicable Federal statutes expressly mandate or encourage geographic preference.”
Evaluation of each proposal will be scored on the following five (5) factors.
•

Prior non-profit and government auditing

•

Audit team members’ profiles, qualifications, and experience

•

Firm profile and qualifications

•

Cost of Services
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•

Approach to the Engagement

4. Proposal Instructions
Sealed Proposals – Each Respondent shall submit only one proposal. A proposal shall
consist of one (1) manually signed original and five (5) photocopies of the completed
proposal. They shall be submitted in a sealed envelope or package bearing the title, “EARLY
LEARNING COALITION OF MARION COUNTY, INC. – EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES”
along with the name and address of the organization submitting the proposal. Proposals
should include a contact name and an email address for correspondence and shall be
submitted no later than 3:30 P.M. EST on January 11, 2019, to:
DeAnna Johnson
Chief Finance Officer
Early Learning Coalition of Marion County, Inc.
2300 SW 17th Road
Ocala, FL 34471-2006
The Respondent is responsible for ensuring that the proposal arrives on time at the correct
address. Late proposals will be returned unopened.
In addition to the mailed copy of the RFP, Respondents may request an electronic copy of
the RFP by sending an email request to djohnson@elc-marion.org or by downloading a copy
from the Coalition website at www.elc-marion.org.
5. Application Timetable
Dates Advertised/Available:

December 3, 2018 – January 11, 2019

Deadline for Receipt of Written Questions:

December 17, 2018

Deadline for Answers to Respondent Questions:

December 21, 2018

Deadline for Receipt of Proposals (No Exceptions):

January 11, 2019 by 3:30 pm EST

Evaluation Interviews:

January 17, 2019

Notification of Intent to Award Contract:

February 28, 2019
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SECTION V – INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE EXTERNAL AUDITING SERVICES RFP
The Coalition requires the proposal to be completed in full. The sections to the form are as
follows:
Section 1

Table of Contents

The table of contents should include a clear identification of the material by section and
by page number.
Section 2

Letter of Certification

This section is a letter of certification on company letterhead to be signed by the auditing firm.
This letter should state that the auditing firm can provide the services the Coalition requires, that
specific attachments have been included, that any required additional documentation will be
forwarded within three (3) days if selected, and that it is understood that all information included
in the proposal shall become public record.
It is the responsibility of potential Respondents to be familiar with all publications and list them
accordingly.
Section 3

General Description of the Scope of Work

In this section there should be a brief statement demonstrating the Respondent’s understanding
of the work to be performed and a positive commitment from the Respondent to perform the
work. There must be discussion of how the Respondent will perform each of the desired
services that are listed in Section II – Scope of Services of this proposal.
Section 4

Approach to the Audit

a. The Respondent should describe the approach that they will use in providing the audit
services.
b. The Respondent should describe the procedures they will use in documenting the
internal control environment.
c. The Respondent should describe its procedures for assessing fraud risk and preparing
audit responses in accordance with SAS 99 and SAS 115.
d. The Respondent should describe how it plans to obtain an understanding of internal
controls and the method it plans to use to test the effectiveness of internal controls.
e. The Respondent should clearly describe its procedures for reporting fraud, illegal acts,
or significant internal control deficiencies to its clients.
f.

The Respondent should clearly describe its philosophy and its procedures in formulating
management letter comments.

g. The Respondent should describe the proposed approach to meet all reporting deadlines
outlined in Section 2.D.5.
Section 5

Firm Profile and Qualifications

a. The Respondent must be licensed to practice public accounting in the State of Florida
and furnish documentation.
b. The Respondent should communicate its experience in performing not-for-profit and
governmental types of audits including single audits; including specific to other Early
Learning Coalitions.
c. The Respondent should communicate its experience in preparing financial statements in
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compliance with authoritative guidance and the GAAP hierarchy.
d. The Respondent should indicate whether it is a local, regional, or national firm. In
addition, the Respondent should give the location of the office from which the work is to
be performed and indicate the number of partners, managers, supervisors, seniors, and
staff members that are employed by that office.
e. This section should provide references from other Florida not-for-profit coalitions or from
clients whose audits are similar to the services sought by this RFP.
f.

This section should describe the types of work offered by the local office such as
auditing, write-up, tax, consulting, litigation support, and investment advisory services.

g. The Respondent must indicate any disciplinary action taken against the Respondent or
any individual associated with the Respondent by that State of Florida, Board of
Accountancy within the last three (3) years.
h. The Respondent must describe all lawsuits that were filed or are pending against the
local office within the last three (3) years.
i.

The Respondent must furnish its last peer review report and explain any significant
weaknesses that were identified by the report.

j.

Explanation if the Respondent is a small or minority-owned business or women’s
business enterprise. If the Respondent is a Certified Business Enterprise as recognized
by the State of Florida Department of Management Service, please provide
documentation.

Section 6

Audit Team Member Profiles and Qualifications

The Respondent must identify the audit team that will be responsible for providing the required
audit services, including the partners, managers, supervisors, and staff. Resumes for each
partner, manager, supervisor, senior, and staff to be assigned to the audit team should be
submitted and the resumes should include the following information:
a. Formal Education
b. Continuing professional education relative to not-for-profit and governmental accounting
and auditing
c. Experience in government accounting and auditing
d. Experience in public accounting in general
e. Experience in auditing not-for-profit entities, including the individual’s current position
held (partner, manager, supervisor, senior or staff)
f.

Experience working with Early Learning Coalitions

g. Experience in computerized systems
h. Membership to various national and state accounting boards, committees, or
associations
i.

Professional recognition such as a Certified Public Accounting license, awards, etc.

The Respondent must identify who would serve as the primary point of contact on the
engagement.
Section 7

Prior Firm Not-for-Profit and Governmental Experience

The Respondent should describe its prior auditing experience, including names, addresses,

47

contact person, and telephone numbers of prior organizations audited. Experience should
include the following categories:
a. Prior experience auditing programs funded by the Federal Government.
b. Prior experience auditing similar programs operated by FOEL.
c. Prior experience auditing non-profit organizations.
List all recent non-for-profit and government audit engagements.
Section 8

Certification Affidavit

The Certification Affidavit attests that the organization has made all necessary disclosures and
that the organization will provide copies of policies within three (3) business days of being
selected. This form needs to be signed and notarized and returned with the proposal.
Section 9

Cost of Services

The Respondent shall prepare a schedule of billing rates for the various levels of staff, together
with an estimate of the number of hours it anticipates for completing the annual examination of
the Coalition’s financial statements. Using these estimates, the Respondent shall provide a notto-exceed amount for the proposed audit services. Any extraordinary charges shall be considered
as costs associated with annual examinations for the purpose of proposal evaluations.
Illustrative Guide for Reporting Cost of Services
Staff Level

Hourly Billing
Rate

Estimated
Number of Hours

Estimated
Charges

Responsibilities

Staff
Senior
Manager
Partner
Other
Total

N/A

Fiscal Year Ending

N/A
Estimated Number of Hours

Amount Not to Exceed

June 30, 2019
June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
June 30, 2022
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Section 10

References

The Respondent must provide at least three (3) references from current clients within the Florida
Non-for-profit industry, and/or clients whose funding sources are similar to the Coalitions or from
other State of Florida agencies. The name and contact information of a responsible member of
management, including but not limited to the Chief Financial Officer, or Finance Director and/or
Chief Executive Officer shall be provided.
Section 11

Attachments

The Respondent must include all attachments in this section if applicable.
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Example - Letter of Certification
DeAnna Johnson
Chief Finance Officer
The Early Learning Coalition of Marion County, Inc.
2300 SW 17th Road
Ocala, FL 34471-2006

Dear Ms. Johnson:
We have read The Early Learning Coalition of Marion County, Inc.’s Request for Proposal
and fully understand its intent. We certify that the following:
1. The individual signing certifies that the Respondent has adequate personnel, equipment,
technology, and facilities to fulfill the requirements of the engagement.
2. The individual signing certifies that the Respondent understands that ability to meet the
criteria and provide the required services will be judged by Coalition staff members and
members of the Finance Committee. We also understand that final approval for a contract
award will come from the Coalition Board of Directors.
3. The individual signing certifies that the Respondent understands that final approval for a
contract award will come from the Coalition Board of Directors.
4. The individual signing certifies that he/she is authorized to contract on behalf of the
Respondent.
5. The individual signing certifies that the Respondent is not involved in any agreement to
pay money or other consideration for the execution of this agreement, other than an
employee of the Respondent.
6. The individual signing certifies that the prices in this proposal have been arrived at
independently, without consultation, communication, or agreement, for purpose of
restricting competition.
7. The individual signing certifies that the prices quoted in this proposal have not been
knowingly disclosed by the Respondent prior to an award to any other Respondent or
potential Respondent.
8. The individual signing certifies that there has been no attempt by the Respondent to
discourage any potential Respondent from submitting a proposal.
9. The individual signing certifies that the Respondent have not divulged, discussed, or
compared this proposal with any other Respondent and have not colluded with any other
Respondent in the preparation of this proposal to gain an unfair advantage in the award
of this proposal.
10. The individual signing certifies that the Respondent is properly licenses to practice public
accounting in the State of Florida.
11. The individual signing certifies that the Respondent meets the independence standards
of the Government Auditing Standards.
12. The individual signing certifies that the he/she is aware of and will comply with the GAO’s
continuing education requirement of 80 hours of continuing education every two years
and that 24 hours of the 80 hours of education will be in subjects directly related to the

50

government environment and to government auditing for individuals.
13. The individual signing certifies that he/she is aware of and will comply with the GAO
requirement of an external quality control (peer) review at least once every three years.
14. The individual signing certifies that he/she has read and understands the following
publications relative to the proposed audits:
a. Government Accounting Standards (Yellow Book)
b. Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform
Guidance”)
c. OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations
d. Audits of Not-for-Profit Entities (AICPA Audit Guide)
e. Audits of State and Local Governments (AICPA Audit Guide)
f. Single Audits (2 CFR Part 200 Subpart F)
g. Florida Single Audit Act
15. The individual signing certifies that he/she has read and understands all of the information
in this Request for Proposal, including the information on the programs/grants/contracts
to be audited.
16. The individual signing certifies that the Respondent, and any individual to be assigned to
the audit, does not have a record of substandard audit work and has not been debarred
or suspended from doing work with any federal, state, or local government. (If the
Respondent or any individual to be assigned to the audit has been found in violation of
any state or AICPA professional standards, this information must be disclosed.)
17. We have attached the following for your review:
a. Auditing Services Proposal
b. A signed and notarized copy of the Certification Affidavit
c. A completed IRS Form W-9
It is understood that all information included in, attached to, or required by this RFP shall
become public record upon their delivery to the Coalition as defined in the Public Records
Act, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.
Dated this _____ day of _______________, 2018.
_____________________________________________
(Respondent’s Firm Name)
_____________________________________________
(Signature of Respondent’s Authorized Representative)
_____________________________________________
(Printed Name and Title of Individual Signing)
_____________________________________________
(E-mail Address)
_____________________________________________
(Telephone Number)
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CERTIFICATION AFFIDAVIT
DIRECTIONS: BY ATTESTING TO THIS FORM, THE RESPONDENT AGREES TO
COMPLY WITH ALL FIVE (5) SECTIONS ON THE SWORN AFFIDAVIT. THIS FORM MUST
BE SIGNED IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER
AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.
1. APPLICATION ACCURACY
I do hereby certify that all facts, figures, and representations made in the proposal are true and
correct. The filing of this proposal has been authorized by the contracting entity and I have
been duly authorized to act as the representative of the organization in connection with this
proposal. I also agree to follow all terms, conditions, and applicable federal law and state
statutes.
2. PROHIBITION ON LOBBYING
Applicants are hereby advised and agree to comply with the Coalition’s adopted prohibition
on lobbying:
No funds granted by the Coalition shall be used by a provider agency to hire a lobbyist or to
supplant any funds which would allow for the funding of a lobbyist.
Any Respondent or lobbyist, paid or unpaid, for a Respondent is prohibited from having any
private communication concerning any procurement process or any response to a procurement
process with any Coalition Board Member, the Coalition’s Chief Executive Officer, or any
Coalition employee after the issuance of this RFP and until the completion of the contract
award. A proposal from any organization will be disqualified when the Respondent or a paid or
unpaid lobbyist for the Respondent violates this condition of the procurement process.
3. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Applicants are hereby advised, and agree to comply with the Coalition’s adopted conflict of
interest regulations:
All Respondents must disclose the name of any officer, director, or agent who is also a Coalition
employee. All Respondents must disclose the name of any Coalition employee who owns,
directly or indirectly, any interest in the Respondent’s business or any of its branches. All
Respondents must disclose any business relationships with any officer, director, subcontractor
or employee of the Coalition. The disclosures described above must be submitted as a cover
letter, included with the RFP, addressed to the Chief Finance Officer, and must be submitted
no later than the proposal deadline.
4. AGENCY CERTIFICATION
I, the undersigned applicant, hereby attest that the following policies, procedures,
regulations, and documentation are in effect and agree to provide copies of the following
within three working days of notification by the Coalition of intent to award the contract:
a. Affirmative Action Policy
b. Certified Minority Business Enterprises (if applicable)
c. Small Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Policy (if applicable)
d. Americans with Disabilities Policy
e. Drug Free Workplace Policy
5. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME AFFIDAVIT

a. I understand that a “public entity crime” as defined in Paragraph 287.133(I)(g), Florida
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Statutes means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and
directly related to the transaction of business with any entity, agency or political
subdivision of any other state or with the United States, including, but not limited to, any
bid or contract for goods or services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or
political subdivision of any other state or of the United States and involving antitrust,
fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.

b. I understand that “convicted” or “conviction” as defined in Paragraph 287.133(I)(b),
Florida Statutes means a finding of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime with or
without adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record relating to charges
brought by indictment after July 1989, or as a result of a jury verdict, non-jury trial, or entry
of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
c. I understand that an “affiliate” as defined in Section 287.122, Florida Statutes means:
•

A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or

•

an entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management
of the entity and who has been convicted of a public entity crime. The term
“affiliate” includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders,
employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of the affiliate.

•

The ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another
person, or pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market
value under an arm’s length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one
person controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint
venture with a person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida
during the preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.

d. I understand that a “person” as defined in Section 287.133 Florida Statutes means
any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States
with the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on
contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise
transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity. The term “person”
includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees,
members, and agents who are active in management of an entity.
e. Based on information and belief, the statement which I have marked below is true in
relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. (Please indicate which statement
applies.)
•

Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any officer, directors,
executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active
in the management of the entity, nor any affiliate of the entity have been charged
and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.

•

The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of the officers, directors,
executives, partners, shareholders, employee members or agents who are active in
management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and
convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989, and (Please indicate
which additional statement applies).
1. ___ There were proceedings concerning the conviction before a hearing officer
of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings. The final order
entered by the hearing officer did not place the person or affiliate on the
convicted vendor list.
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2. ___ The person or affiliate was placed on the convicted vendor list. There has
been a subsequent proceeding before a hearing officer of the State of Florida,
Division of Administrative Hearings. The final order entered by the hearing
officer determined that it was a public interest to remove the person or affiliate
from the convicted vendor list. (Please attach a copy of the final order).
3. ___ The person or affiliate has not been placed on the convicted vendor list.
(Please describe any action taken by or pending in the Department of General
Services).
ORGANIZATION’S NAME AND ADDRESS:

NOTE: AS EVIDENCED BY MY BELOW, I UNDERSTAND AND WILL COMPLY WITH ALL
TERMS AND CONDITIONS STATED HEREIN:

Type Authorized Official’s Name

Authorized Official’s Title

Authorized Official’s Signature

Date

Federal Employee Identification Number
FOR NOTARY PUBLIC (OFFICIAL USE ONLY)
STATE OF

COUNTY OF

PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY.
who, after first being sworn by me, affixed his/her
signature in the space.
Provided above on the__________ day of ___________________ , 20

.

NOTARY PUBLIC
My Commission Expires:
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Attachment A
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Attachment B
PROPOSAL EVALUATION FORM

Proposer Name__________________________________________
Point
Points
Range Earned
1.

2.

3.

4.

Approach to the Audit
Description of approach

0–5

Understanding of and procedures used for testing of internal controls

0 – 10

Description of procedures for reporting fraud, illegal acts, etc. to client

0-4

Realistic time estimates of each audit step

0-5

Firm Profile
Adequate size of firm

0–5

Independence

0–5

No Conflicts of Interest

0–3

Results of Peer Review

0–3

Certified Business Enterprise

0-5

Audit Team Member Qualifications
Prior experience with government and non-profit accounting

0–5

Overall experience in public accounting

0–5

Experience auditing non-for-profit entities

0–5

Experience working with Early Learning Coalitions

0-5

Prior Audit Experience
Prior experience auditing programs funded by the Federal Government 0 – 10

5

Prior experience auditing similar programs operated by FOEL

0 – 10

Prior experience auditing non-profit organizations

0–5

Price
Annual Audit

0–8

Form 990

0–2

Total Points

0 - 100

Evaluation Committee Member Name:
Review Date:
Evaluation Committee Member Signature:
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Information
Items
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COMMENTS FROM THE CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEYS FOR AUGUST 2018
The August 2018 winner for the prize was Ashley. There were 37 online surveys completed. There were 22
parents that marked that they received a Parent and Child Activities Newsletter.
12. What do you like about the program in which you participate?
•

The staff being very knowledgeable

•

Friendly, knowledgeable staff

•

The School Readiness Program

•

Immediate availability of services

•

Many options to help your needs

•

She was Friendly and help me out a lot

•

It’s convenient and helps lots of families that need child care.

•

Stability.

•

It really helps moms in need. I am very grateful to the program!

•

The fact that they are able to help the community

•

it’s slot of help for a single mom

•

The opportunity the children get

•

Affordable help

•

Assistance in paying for child care

•

It is very important and needed
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•

That it really helps single and struggling parents

•

I’m able to work & have my kids somewhere I know there safe & it’s affordable

•

Usually they help me get what I need. They help with allot of different things and they actually give you
a packet of diapers if they have the size you need.

•

That it helps families that are in need of help

•

Everyone very nice and helpful. Lots of resources offered.

•

Efficiency of the process

•

Everything

•

It helps a lot of people that really need the help.

•

Help with daycare mainly. They have also given diapers, wipes, books.

•

They make it possible for working single moms to have a career and with the assistance of financial
help with childcare

•

Everyone is friendly and helpful

•

Helped me pay for daycare for my daughter. Without this program I wouldn’t be able to hold down my
job and would end up in the endless cycle of government assistance.

13. What Changes would you recommend?
•

Several none’s, nothing’s and N/A

•

Too much paperwork everything should be electronic. STAFF RESPONSE: ELCMC has been
implementing the EFS Mod system since July 2018 to transition all School Readiness and VPK
applications and documentation to electronic forms.
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•

Having to stay during the full appointment instead of dropping documents off or uploading
STAFF RESPONSE: Throughout the implementation period of transition to the new EFS-MOD system,
ELCMC is requesting parents keep their original face-to-face meeting for the first appointment, future
appointments will be able to upload and submit all information securely through the parent portal. If a
parent expresses a need for a different type of appointment, ELCMC will accommodate them to the
best of our ability.

•

More daycares that take infants STAFF RESPONSE: ELCMC is currently working to recruit additional
providers who offer infant and toddler care.

•

The phones call be returned more quickly. STAFF RESPONSE: Throughout the transition period to EFS MOD, ELCMC has experienced a longer than usual response time to returning phone calls due to a
higher volume of incoming calls for assistance with the new system. Typically, clients can expect to
receive a return phone call within 48 hours or sooner.

•

Be seen closer to my appointment time STAFF RESPONSE: With the implementation of our new EFSMOD system, appointment times have taken a bit longer in some instances causing a back-up to
appointment wait times. ELCMC is working to ensure parent wait time is minimal.

•

That they have more diapers. And also the lady that helped me would have been a little nicer and more
open with me and gave me more information about what kind of services they – STAFF RESPONSE: S.
Coleman contacted parent. Parent did not realize that the diapers provided to families in need are
provided through generous donations by the community and are not guaranteed to be in stock. ELCMC
is currently reaching out to the community with the need for additional diapers. This parent asked if
we had any cribs after the diaper concern was explained. When further discussion was held, the parent
does have a safe sleeping space for her child who is one years old.
Customer service is extremely importance to the Early Learning Coalition, the staff who was named has
been addressed and coach to improve their interactions with parents.

•

The check in kiosk STAFF RESPONSE: S. Coleman has reached out to this parent for additional
information. Parent has not responded.
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•

Better service because at times staff is very rude towards customers. STAFF RESPONSE: E. Deola has
reached out to parent to get additional details in order to properly address the concerns of this parent.

•

Simpler computer entries STAFF RESPONSE: ELC Staff are available to assist parents with the process of
applying for services and uploading documents. E. Deola reached out to parent for further information.
No response has been received.

•

wait time in the lobby. I waited for 45 min and I was on my break and had an appt STAFF RESPONSE:
ELCMC takes client wait time seriously and has reviewed the cause of this wait. We have adjusted
appointment times as necessary to allow for extended processing time and more timely appointment.
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COMMENTS FROM THE CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEYS FOR SEPTEMBER 2018
The September 2018 winner for the prize was Angela. There were 13 online surveys completed. There were 7
parents that marked that they received a Parent and Child Activities Newsletter.
12. What do you like about the program in which you participate?
•

You are now able to go online

•

I appreciate the assistance in covering the expense of aftercare and daycare for the child I have
become Legal Guardian of it is a very big help to me and my family.

•

They made me feel comfortable enough to leave my grandson at one of their daycare

•

The assistance

•

It's was amazing

•

That my child was entered into daycare as soon as she was.

•

That I was able to learn more about different resources other than Child care on my visit.

•

They take time to see what services best fix my needs

•

You all gave me the independence to leave my abusive husband.

•

Very helpful

•

That it can help me with good schooling for my children while I advance my career, until I am mms
making enough money.

13. What Changes would you recommend?
•

More one on one STAFF RESPONSE: Staff reached out to client for more details. She recommended
that there would be one staff member follow her case through start to finish to avoid confusion.
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ELCMC is streamlining processes with our new system and this is a near future goal that we continue to
work towards.
•

None at the moment

•

Purse hook in the bathroom STAFF RESPONSE: ELCMC does have bathroom hooks that will be installed
within the next couple of weeks in each lobby restroom.

•

To state all the stipulations of the program rules. (I.e. sick days, Dr. Notes, allotted days to be missed,
etc. STAFF RESPONSE: ELCMC Staff reached out to the client by phone (number disconnected) and
followed up with an email to acquire more information, no response has been received to date. The
School Readiness program is reviewed in detail with each family including the terms and conditions of
the program. Generally, our staff do not discuss attendance requirements with the client as each child
care provider has different requirements regarding tracking absenteeism and accountability for the
families enrolled in care and this is detailed in each providers Parent Handbook.
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October 30, 2018
Mojo’s Trunk or Treat
Location: Mojo’s E. Silver Springs Blvd.
5:00 PM to 8:00 PM

November 8, 2018
Children First Breakfast
Location: CF Klein Center - 7:30 AM to 9:00 AM

November 17, 2018
Books, Balls and Blocks (Help Me Grow)
Location: M.C. Public Library Headquarters – 10:00 AM to 1:00 pm

December 5, 2018
Polar Express
Location: M.C. Public Library Headquarters – 5:00 PM to 6:30 PM

December 8, 2018
Carnival of Learning Celebration
Location: M.C. Public Library Headquarters – 11:00 AM to 1:00 PM

December 15, 2018
M.C. Public Schools & ELCMC/Success By 6 Holiday Book Giveaway
Location: Marion Technical Institute – 10:00 AM to 1:00 PM
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January 29, 2019
World’s Greatest Baby Shower
Location: Sheriff’s Dept. Multi-Purpose Room
3:00 PM to 5:00 PM and 6:00 PM to 8:00 PM

February 7, 2019
MCPS ESE Agency Fair
Location: Marion Oaks Elementary
5:00 PM to 7:00 PM

March 2, 2019
Seuss-a-palooza event
Location: MC Public Library Headquarters
10:00 AM to 1:00 PM

March 5, 2019
MCPS ESE Agency Fair
Location: Forest High School
5:00 PM to 7:00 PM

March 26, 2019
Children’s Day on the Capitol – Location: Tallahassee
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March 30, 2019
Early Childhood Conference
Location: CF Klein Center
7:30 AM to 4:30 PM

April 13, 2019
Superintendent’s Literacy Festival
Location: Citizen’s Circle

10/15/2018-AW
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Parliamentary Motions Guide

Based on Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised (10th Edition)
The motions below are listed in order of precedence. Any motion can be introduced if it is higher on the chart than the pending motion.

YOU WANT TO:
§21
§20
§19
§18
§17
§16
§15
§14
§13
§12

Close meeting
Take break
Register
complaint
Make follow
agenda
Lay aside
temporarily
Close debate
Limit or extend
debate
Postpone to a
certain time
Refer to
committee
Modify wording
of motion

§11

Kill main motion

§10

Bring business
before assembly
(a main motion)

YOU SAY:

INTERRUPT?

2ND?

DEBATE?

AMEND?

VOTE?

I move to adjourn
I move to recess for
I rise to a question of
privilege
I call for the orders
of the day
I move to lay the
question on the table
I move the previous
question
I move that debate be
limited to ...
I move to postpone
the motion to ...
I move to refer the
motion to …
I move to amend the
motion by ...
I move that the
motion be postponed
indefinitely

No
No

Yes
Yes

No
No

No
Yes

Majority
Majority

Yes

No

No

No

None

Yes

No

No

No

None

No

Yes

No

No

Majority

No

Yes

No

No

2/3

No

Yes

No

Yes

2/3

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Majority

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Majority

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Majority

No

Yes

Yes

No

Majority

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Majority

I move that [or "to"]
...

Jim Slaughter, Certified Professional Parliamentarian-Teacher & Professional Registered Parliamentarian
336/378-1899(W) 336/378-1850(F)
P.O. Box 41027, Greensboro 27404
web site: www.jimslaughter.com
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Side 1

Parliamentary Motions Guide

Based on Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised (10th Edition)
Incidental Motions - no order of precedence. Arise incidentally and decided immediately.

YOU WANT TO:
§23
§24

Enforce rules
Submit matter to
assembly

§25

Suspend rules

§26

Avoid main motion
altogether

§27
§29
§33

Divide motion
Demand rising vote
Parliamentary law
question
Request for
information

§33

INTERRUPT

2ND?

DEBATE?

AMEND?

VOTE?

Point of order
I appeal from the
decision of the chair
I move to suspend
the rules which …
I object to the
consideration of the
question
I move to divide the
question
I call for a division
Parliamentary
inquiry

Yes

No

No

No

None

Yes

Yes

Varies

No

Majority

No

Yes

No

No

2/3

Yes

No

No

No

2/3

No
Yes

Yes
No

No
No

Yes
No

Majority
None

Yes

No

No

No

None

Point of information

Yes

No

No

No

None

YOU SAY:

Motions That Bring a Question Again Before the Assembly - no order of precedence. Introduce only when nothing else pending.
§34
§35
§37

Take matter from
table
Cancel previous
action
Reconsider motion

I move to take from
the table …
I move to rescind ...
I move to reconsider
the vote ...

No

Yes

No

No

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Majority
2/3
maj. w/ notice

No

Yes

Varies

No

Majority

Jim Slaughter, Certified Professional Parliamentarian-Teacher & Professional Registered Parliamentarian
336/378-1899(W) 336/378-1850(F)
P.O. Box 41027, Greensboro 27404
web site: www.jimslaughter.com

4/2004
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Side 2

